### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

#### **Table of Contents**

- 1. Introduction: Issues, Approaches, Referents and Ethics
- 2. Conflict Records, Primary Sources, and Historical Method
- 3. Conflict Records, Conflict Data, and Social Sciences
- 4. Conflict Records, Access, and Field Research
- 5. Conflict Records, Exploitation, and the Cold War
- 6. Conflict Records, Intelligence, and the Battlefield
- 7. Conflict Records, Culture, and Area Studies
- 8. Conflict Records, Evidence, and the Courts
- 9. Conflict Records, Memory, and Conflicted Societies
- 10. Conflict Records, Technology, and the Politics of Information

#### 1. Introduction: Issues, Approaches, Referents, Ethics

- Balcells L, Sullivan CM. "New findings from conflict archives: An introduction and methodological framework." *Journal of Peace Research* 55:2 (2018):137-146.
- Caswell, Michelle. "Hannah Arendt's World: Bureaucracy, Documentation, and Banal Evil." *Archivaria* 70 (October 2010): 1-25.
- Cox, Douglas. "National Archives and International Conflicts: The Society of American Archivists and War." *The American Archivist* 74 (Fall / Winter 2011): 451-481.
- Gaddis, John Lewis. "Preface." Chapter in Gaddis, We Now Know: Rethinking Cold War History (Oxford and New York: Oxford University Press, 1997), vii-x.
- George Washington University. *The ISIS Files*. Website (Washington, D.C.: The George Washington University, 2018). URL: https://isisfiles.gwu.edu/.
  - o "Project Overview." URL: https://isisfiles.gwu.edu/about
  - o "Mission Statement and Code of Ethics." URL: <a href="https://isisfiles.gwu.edu/ethics">https://isisfiles.gwu.edu/ethics</a>
- Kalyvas, Stathis. "The Ontology of 'Political Violence': Action and Identity in Civil Wars." *Perspectives on Politics* 1:3 (September 2003): 475-494.
- Kalyvas, Stathis, and Scott Straus. "Interview: Stathis Kalyvas on 20 Years of Studying Political Violence." *Violence: An International Journal* 0:0 (Nov. 2020: 1-19.
- Palmer, Nicola, Briony Jones and & Julia Viebach. "Introduction: Ways of Knowing Atrocity: A Methodological Enquiry into the Formulation, Implementation, and Assessment of Transitional Justice." Canadian Journal of Law and Society / Revue Canadienne Droit Et Société 30:2 (2015): 173-182.
- Porter, Elisabeth et al, Eds. *Researching Conflict in Africa: Insights and Experiences* (Tokyo, New York, Paris: United Nations University Press, 2005).
- Schwartz, Joan M. and Terry Cook. "Archives, Records, and Power: The Making of Modern History." *Archival Science* 2 (2002): 1-19.
- Scott, Janny. "Now It Can Be Told: How Neil Sheehan Got the Pentagon Papers." *New York Times* (7 January 2021). URL: https://www.nytimes.com/2021/01/07/us/pentagon-papers-neil-sheehan.html
- Viebach, Julia. "Transitional archives: towards a conceptualisation of archives in transitional justice." *The International Journal of Human Rights* (2020): 1-37.
- Yeo, Geoffrey. "Concepts of Record (1): Evidence, Information, and Persistent Representations." *The American Archivist* 70:2 (1 September 2007): 315–343.
- Yeo, Geoffrey. "Concepts of Record (2): Prototypes and Boundary Objects." *The American Archivist* 71:1 (2008): 118–143.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

\*\*

- Arendt, Hannah. *Eichmann in Jerusalem: A Report on the Banality of Evil* (New York: Viking Press, 1963).
- Cox, Richard. Closing an Era: Historical Perspectives on Modern Archives and Records Management (Westport, CT: Greenwood Publishing, 2000).
- Cox, Richard and David Wallace, Eds. *Archives and the Public Good: Accountability and Records in Modern Society* (Westport, CT: Greenwood Publishing, 2002).
- Friedrich, Markus. *The Birth of the Archive: A History of Knowledge* (University of Michigan Press, 2018).
- Head, Randolph C. *Making Archives in Early Modern Europe: Proof, Information, and Political Record-Keeping, 1400–1700* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2020).

#### 2. Conflict Records, Primary Sources, and Historical Method

- Breen-Smyth, Marie. "Interviewing combatants: lessons from the Boston College Case." *Contemporary Social Science* 15:2 (2020): 258-274.
- Carr, E.H. What is History? New York: Penguin Books, 1961.
  - o Especially Chapter 1 ("The Historian and His Facts," 7-30).
- Dulic, Tomislav. "Peace Research and Source Criticism: Using historical methodology to improve information gathering and analysis," Chapter in Kristine Hoglund, Magnus Oberg, Eds. *Understanding Peace Research: Methods and Challenges* (Abingdon, UK: Routledge, 2011), 35-46.
- Evans, Richard J. "History, Memory, and the Law: The Historian as Expert Witness," *History & Theory* 41:3 (October 2002): 326-345.
- Evans, Richard J. *In Defence of History* (London: Granta Publications, 1997).
  - Especially chapters 3 ("Historians and Their Facts," 75-102) and 4 ("Sources and Discourses," 103-128).
- Fordham, Benjamin O. "History and Quantitative Conflict Research: A Case for Limiting the Historical Scope of Our Theoretical Arguments," *Conflict Management and Peace Science* 37:1 (2020): 3–15.
- Franzosi, Roberto. "Historical Knowledge and Evidence." Chapter in Robert E. Goodin and Charles Tilly (Eds.), *The Oxford Handbook of Contextual Political Analysis*. Oxford, Oxford University Press, 2011. pp. 438-453.
- Froese, Marc D., "Historical Research Methods in the Social Sciences: Critical Security Studies," Unpublished Paper (October 3, 2011). Available at SSRN: https://ssrn.com/abstract=1937964 or http://dx.doi.org/10.2139/ssrn.1937964
- George, Christine. "Archives Beyond the Pale: Negotiating Legal and Ethical Entanglements after the Belfast Project," *The American Archivist* 76:1 (2013): 47–67.
- Hamber, Brandon and Gráinne Kelly. "Practice, Power and Inertia: Personal Narrative, Archives and Dealing with the Past in Northern Ireland," *Journal of Human Rights Practice* 8:1 (February 2016): 25–44.
- Howard, Michael. Lessons of History (New Haven, CT: Yale University Press, 1992).
- Kalyvas, Stathis. "Promises and pitfalls of an emerging research program: The microdynamics of civil war," Chapter in S. Kalyvas, I. Shapiro, & T. Masoud (Eds.), *Order, Conflict, and Violence* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press. 2008), 397-421.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Kinder, Eliscia. "Non-recurrence, reconciliation, and transitional justice: situating accountability in Northern Ireland's oral history archive," *The International Journal of Human Rights* (2020).
- King, James Allison. 'Say nothing': silenced records and the Boston College subpoenas," *Archives and Records*, 35:1 (2014): 28-42.
- Palys, T., Lowman, J. "Defending Research Confidentiality "To the Extent the Law Allows:"
  Lessons From the Boston College Subpoenas." *Journal of Academic Ethics* 10 (2012): 271–297
- Petrovic, Vladimir. *The Emergence of Historical Forensic Expertise: Clio Takes the Stand* (Abingdon, UK: Routledge, 2017).
- Pluchinsky, Dennis. "Terrorist Documentation." *Terrorism* 14:3 (1991):195-199. [previous title of *Studies in Conflict and Terrorism*]

#### 3. Conflict Records, Conflict Data, and Social Sciences

- Chojnacki, Sven et al. "Event Data on Armed Conflict and Security: New Perspectives, Old Challenges, and Some Solutions," *International Interactions* 38:4 (2012): 382-401.
- Collier, Paul and Anke Hoeffler, "Data Issues in the Study of Conflict," Paper prepared for the Conference on "Data Collection on Armed Conflict", Uppsala 8-9, June 2001.
- Danzger, M. Herbert. "Validating Conflict Data," American Sociological Review 40:5 (1975): 570–584.
- Eck, Kristine. "In Data We Trust? A Comparison of UCDP GED and ACLED Conflict Events Datasets," *Cooperation and Conflict* 47:1 (Mar. 2012): 124–141.
- Gleditsch, Kristian Skrede, "Advances in Data on Conflict and Dissent," Chapter in Emmanuel Deutschmann et al (Eds.), *Computational Conflict Research* (Springer Open, 2020), 23-41.
- Gleditsch, Kristian Skrede, Metternich, Nils, Ruggeri, Andrea. "Data and progress in peace and conflict research," *Journal of Peace Research* 51:2 (2014): 301–314.
- Jackman, Robert W., and William A. Boyd. "Mutiple Sources in the Collection of Data on Political Conflict," *American Journal of Political Science* 23:2 (1979): 434–458.
- Kapiszewski, Diana, Lauren M. Maclean, Benjamin L. Read, *Research in Political Science: Practices And Principles* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2015). Especially the following chapters:
  - o "Thinking Outside the (archive) Box: Discovering Data in the Field," pp. 151-189.
  - o "Interviews, Oral Histories and Focus Groups," pp. 190-233.
  - o "Site-intensive Methods: Ethnography and Participant Observation," pp. 234-265.
- Krueger, Alan B. and David D. Laitin, "'Misunderestimating' Terrorism: The State Department's Big Mistake," *Foreign Affairs* 83:5 (2004): 8-13.
  - Krueger, Alan B. and David Laitin. "Faulty Terror Report Card." Washington Post (17 May 2004), A21. URL: <a href="http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/articles/A31971-2004May16.html">http://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-dyn/articles/A31971-2004May16.html</a>.
- Levy, Barry S. and Victor W. Sidel. "Documenting the Effects of Armed Conflict on Population Health." *Annual Reviews of Public Health* 37 (2016): 205-218.
- Mowafi, Hani and Jennifer Leaning. "Documenting Deaths in the Syrian War." *The Lancet* 6:1 (2018): E14-E15.
  - O Guha-Sapir, Debarati et al., "Patterns of Civilian and Child Deaths Due to War-Related Violence in Syria: a comparative analysis from the Violation Documentation Center Dataset, 2011–16." *The Lancet* 6:1 (2018): E103-110.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Salehyan, Idean. "Best Practices in the Collection of Conflict Data." *Journal of Peace Research* 52:1 (2015): 105–109. doi:10.1177/0022343314551563. [See also Special Data Section of this issue of the *Journal of Peace Research*]
- Sheehan I.S. "Assessing and Comparing Data Sources for Terrorism Research," Chapter in Lum C., Kennedy L. (eds) *Evidence-Based Counterterrorism Policy*. Springer Series on Evidence-Based Crime Policy, vol 3. (New York: Springer, 2012).
- Subotić, Jelena. "Ethics of Archival Research on Political Violence." *Journal of Peace Research* (July 2020): 1-13. doi:10.1177/0022343319898735
- Weidmann, Nils B. "On the Accuracy of Media-Based Conflict Event Data," *Journal of Conflict Resolution* 59:6 (Sept. 2015): 1129–1149. DOI:10.1177/0022002714530431.
- Weidmann, Nils B. "A Closer Look at Reporting Bias in Conflict Event Data," *American Journal of Political Science* 60:1 (2016): 206-218.
- Weidmann, Nils B. "The Higher the Better? The Limits of Analytical Resolution in Conflict Event Datasets," Cooperation and Conflict 48:4 (2013): 567–576.

#### 4. Conflict Records, Access, and Field Research

- Dolnik, Adam, Eds. *Conducting Terrorism Field Research: A Guide* (New York and London: Routledge, 2013).
- Duff, Wendy M. and Jessica Haskell, "New Uses for Old Records: A Rhizomatic Approach to Archival Access." *The American Archivist* 78:1 (2015): 38–58.
- Koonings, Kees and Dirk Kruijt, Dennis Rogers, Eds. *Ethnography as Risky Business: Field Research in Violent and Sensitive Contexts* (New York: Rowman and Littlefield, 2019).
- Krause, Peter and Ora Szekely. *Stories from the Field: A Guide to Navigating Fieldwork in Political Science* (New York: Columbia University Press, 2020).
- Menne-Haritz, A. "Access The Reformulation of an Archival Paradigm." *Archival Science* 1 (2001): 57-82.
- Nordstrom, Carolyn and Antonius C.G.M. Robben, Eds. *Fieldwork Under Fire: Contemporary Studies of Violence and Survival* (Berkeley, Los Angeles, London: University of California Press, 1995).
- Norman, Julie. "Got Trust? The Challenge of Gaining Access in Conflict Zones." Chapter in Sriram et al, Eds. *Surviving Field Research: Working in Violent and Difficult Situations* (London and New York: Routledge, 2009), pp.72-90.
- Omand, David. "The Intelligence Cycle." Chapter in Omand, *Securing the State* (London: C. Hurst & Co. Publishers, 2010), 113-137.
- Rimando, M., Brace, A. M., Namageyo-Funa, A., Parr, T. L., Sealy, D., Davis, T. L., Martinez, L. M., & Christiana, R. W. "Data Collection Challenges and Recommendations for Early Career Researchers," *The Qualitative Report* 20:12 (2015): 2025-2036.
- Rasch, Courtney. "From Cell Phones to Coffee: Issues of Access in Egypt and Lebanon." Chapter in Sriram et al, Eds. *Surviving Field Research: Working in Violent and Difficult Situations* (London and New York: Routledge, 2009), pp.91-107.
- Thomson, Susan M. "'That is not what we authorised you to do': Access and Government Interference in Highly Politicised Research Environments." Chapter in Sriram et al, Eds. Surviving Field Research: Working in Violent and Difficult Situations (London and New York: Routledge, 2009), pp.108-124.
- Thummapol, Onouma, et al. "Methodological Challenges Faced in Doing Research With Vulnerable Women: Reflections From Fieldwork Experiences." *International Journal of Qualitative Methods* 18 (Jan. 2019): 1-11. DOI:10.1177/1609406919843022.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

 Wood Elizabeth. "Field Research During War: Ethical Dilemmas." Chapter in Joseph L., Mahler M., Auyero J., Eds. New Perspectives in Political Ethnography (New York, NY: 2007), 205-223.

#### 5. Conflict Records, Exploitation, and the Cold War

- Bagnall, J.J. "The Exploitation of Russian Scientific Literature for Intelligence Purposes." *Studies Archive Index* 2:3 (1994/2007). URL: <a href="https://www.cia.gov/library/center-for-the-study-of-intelligence/kent-csi/vol2no3/html/v02i3a07p\_0001.htm">https://www.cia.gov/library/center-for-the-study-of-intelligence/kent-csi/vol2no3/html/v02i3a07p\_0001.htm</a>.
- David, James E. (Ed.). Scavenging for Intelligence: The U.S. Government's Secret Search for Foreign Objects during the Cold War. Briefing Book #616 (Washington, D.C.: National Security Archive, 2018). URL: <a href="https://nsarchive.gwu.edu/briefing-book/intelligence/2018-01-31/scavenging-intelligence-us-governments-secret-search-foreign-objects-during-cold-war.">https://nsarchive.gwu.edu/briefing-book/intelligence/2018-01-31/scavenging-intelligence-us-governments-secret-search-foreign-objects-during-cold-war.</a>
- Epley, William E. (Ed.). International Cold War Military Records and History: Proceedings of the International Conference on Cold War Military Records and History Held in Washington, D.C. 21-26 March 1994 (Washington, D.C.: Office of the Secretary of Defense, 1996).
- Farquharson, John. "Governed or Exploited? The British Acquisition of German Technology, 1945-48." *Journal of Contemporary History* 32:1 (1997): 23–42.
- Gimbel, John. *Science, Technology, and Reparations: Exploitation and Plunder in Postwar Germany* (Stanford, CA: Stanford University Press, 1990).
- Gimbel, John. "The American Exploitation of German Technical Know-How after World War II." *Political Science Quarterly* 105:2 (1990): 295-309.
- Gimbel, John. "U.S. Policy and German Scientists: The Early Cold War." *Political Science Quarterly* 101:3 (1986): 433-451.
- Hall, Charlie. *British Exploitation of German Science and Technology, 1943-1949: The Spoils of War* (New York and London: Routledge, 2019).
- Hall, Charlie. "Pushed into Pragmatism: British Approaches to Science in Post-War Occupied Germany." *The International History Review* 41:3 (2019): 559-580.
- Hall, Charlie. "A Completely Open Race': Anglo–Soviet Competition over German Military Science and Technology, 1944–1949." *War in History* (Nov. 2019): 1-20.
- Hall, Charlie. "Close to the Enemy, Closer to the Truth?" *Munitions of the Mind* (23 December 2016). URL: <a href="https://blogs.kent.ac.uk/munitions-of-the-mind/2016/12/23/close-to-the-enemy-close-to-the-truth/">https://blogs.kent.ac.uk/munitions-of-the-mind/2016/12/23/close-to-the-enemy-close-to-the-truth/</a>
- Jacobsen, Annie. *Operation Paperclip: The Secret Intelligence Program That Brought Nazi Scientists to America* (New York, Boston, London: Little, Brown and Company, 2014).
- Judt, Matthias and Burghard Ciesla (eds). *Technology Transfer out of Germany after 1945* (London: Routledge, 1996).
- Maddrell, Paul. "Operation Matchbox and the Scientific Containment of the USSR." Chapter in Peter Jackson and Jennifer Siegel (eds.), *Intelligence and Statecraft: The Use and Limits of Intelligence in International Society* (Westport: Greenwood, 2005), pp. 173-206.
- O'Reagan, Douglas M. "French Scientific Exploitation and Technology Transfer from Germany in the Diplomatic Context of the Early Cold War." *The International History Review* 37:2 (2015): 366-385.
- O'Reagan, Douglas M. *Taking Nazi Technology: Allied Exploitation of German Science after the Second World War* (Baltimore: Johns Hopkins University Press, 2019).
- Thamm, Gerhardt B. "The Potsdam Archive: Sorting Through 19 Linear Miles of German Records." *Studies in Intelligence* 58:1 (2014): 1-7/

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

• Uttley, Matthew. "Operation Surgeon and Britain's Post-war Exploitation of Nazi German Aeronautics." *Intelligence and National Security* 17 (2002): 1-26.

#### 6. Conflict Records, Intelligence and the Battlefield

- Cox, Joseph. "DOMEX: The Birth of a New Intelligence System," *Military Intelligence Professional Bulletin* 36:2 (April-June 2010): 22-32.
- Cunliffe, William, Timothy Duskin, and David H. Wallace. "Captured North Vietnamese Documents of the Combined Document Exploitation Center: A Special List of CDEC Documents in Record Group 472." Special List 60. Washington: National Archives and Records Administration, 1993.
- Fishman, Brian and Joseph Felter. *Al-Qa'ida's Foreign Fighters in Iraq: A First Look at the Sinjar Records*. Harmony Project Report (Westpoint, NY: Combatting Terrorism Centre, 2007).
- Ford, Christopher C. "Military or Judicial Search Which Standard Applies? Lessons From Bosnia," *Joint Center For Operational Analysis Journal* 10:2 (2008): 38-40.
- González, Roberto J. "Beyond the Human Terrain System: A Brief Critical History (And A Look Ahead)," *Contemporary Social Science* 15:2 (2020): 227-240.
- González, Roberto J. "Ethnographic Intelligence: The Human Terrain System and Its Enduring Legacy," Chapter in Moe L., Müller MM. (eds), *Reconfiguring Intervention*. Palgrave Macmillan, London, 2017.
- Goodman, Michael. "Studying and Teaching About Intelligence: The Approach in the United Kingdom." *Studies in Intelligence* 50:2 (2006). URL: <a href="https://www.cia.gov/library/center-for-the-study-of-intelligence/csi-publications/csi-studies/studies/vol50no2/html\_files/Studying\_Teaching\_6.htm">https://www.cia.gov/library/center-for-the-study-of-intelligence/csi-publications/csi-studies/studies/vol50no2/html\_files/Studying\_Teaching\_6.htm</a>.
- Keegan, John. "Knowledge of the Enemy." Chapter in Keegan, *Intelligence in War: Knowledge of the Enemy From Napoleon to Al-Qaeda* (London: Hutchinson, 2003), 7-28.
- Kilcullen, David. "A Note on Sources and Methods," Chapter in Kilcullen, *The Accidental Guerrilla: Fighting Small Wars in the Midst of a Big One* (London: C. Hurst & Co., 2009), pp. 303-306.
- Liebl, Vernie. "Paper and COIN: Exploiting the Enemy's Documents," *Military Review* (Sep-Oct 2007): 131-135.
- McFate, Montgomery and Janice H. Laurence, Eds. *Social Science Goes to War: The Human Terrain System in Iraq and Afghanistan*. London: C. Hurst & Co. Publishers, 2015.
- Meyer, Michael B. A History of Socio-Cultural Intelligence and Research Under the Occupation of Japan. Carlisle, PA: Strategic Studies Institute / US Army War College, 2009.
- Moise, Ed. Vietnam War Bibliography: Combined Document Exploitation Center (CDEC). Web Resource. URL: http://edmoise.sites.clemson.edu/cdec.html.
- Montgomery, Bruce. *The Seizure of Saddam Hussein's Archive of Atrocity* (NY: Rowman and Littlefield, 2019).
- Montgomery, Bruce. "US Seizure, Exploitation, and Restitution of Saddam Hussein's Archive of Atrocity." *Journal of American Studies* 48:2 (2014): 559-593.
- Montgomery, Bruce. "Saddam Hussein's Records of Atrocity: Seizure, Removal, and Restitution." *The American Archivist* 75:2 (2012): 326–370.
- Montgomery, Bruce P. and Michael Brill. "The Ghosts of Past Wars Live on in a Critical Archive." War on the Rocks (11 September 2019). URL: https://warontherocks.com/2019/09/the-ghosts-of-past-wars-live-on-in-a-critical-archive/.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Simon Willmetts. "The Cultural Turn in Intelligence Studies," *Intelligence and National Security* 34:6 (2019): 800-817.
- Sims, Christopher J. *The Human Terrain System: Operationally Relevant Social Science Research in Iraq and Afghanistan* (Carlisle, PA: Strategic Studies Institute / U.S. Army War College, 2015).
- Spector, Ronald H. "In the Nam' and 'Back in the World': American and Vietnamese Sources on the Vietnam War." *The Journal of American History* 75:1 (1988): 209–214.
- Tomes, Robert R. "Socio-Cultural Intelligence and National Security," *Parameters* 45:2 (2015): 61-76.
- US Army. *ATTP 2-19.5: Document and Media Exploitation Tactics, Techniques, and Procedures* (Washington, D.C.: Headquarters, Department of the Army, ND).
- USMC. Intelligence Exploitation of Enemy Material: Lessons and Observations From Operation Iraqi Freedom (OIF) (USMC Center for Lessons Learned, 2006).
- Yalçınkaya, Haldun & Yusuf Özer. "Another lesson learned in Afghanistan: the concept of cultural intelligence," *International Peacekeeping*, 24:3 (2017): 434-460.
- Zehfuss, Maja. "Culturally Sensitive War? The Human Terrain System and the Seduction of Ethics," *Security Dialogue* 43:2 (2012): 175–190.

#### 7. Conflict Records, Culture, and Area Studies

- Anderson, David M. "Mau Mau in the High Court and the 'Lost' British Empire Archives: Colonial Conspiracy or Bureaucratic Bungle?" *The Journal of Imperial and Commonwealth History* 39:5 (2011): 699-716,
- Ashutosh, Ishan. "The Geography and Area Studies Interface from the Second World War to the Cold War." *Geographical Review*, 107:4 (2017): 705-721.
- Badger, Anthony. "Historians, a legacy of suspicion and the 'migrated archives'." *Small Wars & Insurgencies* 23:4-5 (2012): 799-807.
- Banton, Mandy. "Destroy? 'Migrate'? Conceal? British Strategies for the Disposal of Sensitive Records of Colonial Administrations at Independence. *The Journal of Imperial and Commonwealth History* 40:2 (2012): 321-335.
- Caswell, Michelle. "Thank You Very Much, Now Give Them Back': Cultural Property and the Fight over the Iraqi Baath Party Records." *The American Archivist* 74:1 (Spring/Summer 2011): 211-240.
- Cox, Douglas, "Archives and Records in Armed Conflict: International Law and the Current Debate Over Iraqi Records and Archives." *Catholic University Law Review* (2010): 1001-1056
- Cumings, Bruce. "Boundary displacement: Area studies and international studies during and after the cold war." *Bulletin of Concerned Asian Scholars* 29:1 (1997): 6-26.
- Engerman, David C. "Social Science in the Cold War." Isis 101:2 (2010): 393-400.
- Fall, Bernard. *Street without Joy: Indochina at War, 1946-1954*. Harrisburg, PA: Stackpole Books, 1961.
- Kaplan, Robert D. *Balkan Ghosts: A Journey Through History*. New York, St. Martin's Press, 1993.
- Kaplan, Robert D. *The Ends of the Earth: A Journey to the Frontiers of Anarchy*. New York: Random House, 1996.
- Katzenstein, Peter J. "Area and Regional Studies in the United States." *PS: Political Science and Politics* 34:4 (2001): 789–791.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Ludden, David. "Area Studies in the Age of Globalization." *Frontiers: The Interdisciplinary Journal of Study Abroad.* 6:1 (2000): 1-22.
- Moseley, William G. "Area Studies in a Global Context." *Chronicle of Higher Education* (29 November 2009). URL: <a href="https://www.chronicle.com/article/area-studies-in-a-global-context">https://www.chronicle.com/article/area-studies-in-a-global-context</a>.
- Nugent, David. Military Intelligence and Social Science Knowledge: Global Conflict, Territorial Control and the Birth of Area Studies during WW II (New York: Social Science Research Council, June 14-15, 2007). URL: https://www.ssrc.org/publications/view/4CE2A5DD-2E5C-DE11-BD80-001CC477EC70/
  - Published Version: Nugent, David. "Military Intelligence and Social Science Knowledge: Global Conflict, Territorial Control and the Birth of Area Studies during WW II." Anuário Antropológico 32:1 (2007): 33-68.
- Sato, Shohei. 'Operation Legacy': Britain's Destruction and Concealment of Colonial Records Worldwide," *The Journal of Imperial and Commonwealth History* 45:4 (2017): 697-719.
- Szanton, David S., Ed. *The Politics of Knowledge: Area Studies and the Disciplines*. Berkeley and Los Angeles: University of California Press, 2004.
- Wang, Ban. "The Cold War, Imperial Aesthetics, and Area Studies." *Social Text* 20:3 (2002): 45-65.

#### 8. Conflict Records, Evidence and the Courts

- Caswell, Michelle. "Using Classification to Convict the Khmer Rouge." *Journal of Documentation* 68:2 (2012): 162-184.
- Combs, Nancy A. Fact-Finding without Facts: The Uncertain Evidentiary Foundations of International Criminal Convictions (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press, 2010).
- Good, Anthony. "'Undoubtedly an Expert'? Anthropologists in British Asylum Courts," *The Journal of the Royal Anthropological* Institute 10:1 (2004): 113–133.
- King, Gary. "The Changing Evidence Base of Social Science Research," Chapter in G. King, K. Lehman Schlozman, and N. Nie, Eds. *The Future of Political Science: 100 Perspectives* (New York: Routledge, 2009): 91-93.
- Langbein, John H. "Historical Foundations of the Law of Evidence: A View From the Ryder Sources," *Columbia Law Review* 96 (1996): 1168-1202.
- Lauwers, Delphine. "From Belgium to The Hague via Berlin and Moscow: documenting war crimes and the quest for international justice, 1919-2019." *Archives and Manuscripts* 48:2 (2020): 216-236.
- Little, Daniel. "Evidence and Objectivity in the Social Sciences," *Social Research* 60:2 (1993): 363–396.
- Petersen, Trudy H. "Temporary Courts, Permanent Records." Occasional Paper, History and Public Policy Program, United States Institute of Peace, 2008. URL: https://www.usip.org/publications/2006/08/temporary-courts-permanent-records
- Petersen, Trudy H. Final Acts: A Guide to Preserving the Records of Truth Commissions
   (Woodrow Wilson International Centre For Scholars / Johns Hopkins University Press, 2005).
   URL: https://www.wilsoncenter.org/book/final-acts-guide-to-preserving-the-records-truth-commissions
- Parkhurst, Justin. *The Politics of Evidence: From Evidence-Based Policy to the Good Governance of Evidence* (New York: Routledge, 2017).

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Rankin, Melinda. "The Future of International Criminal Evidence in New Wars? The Evolution of the Commission for International Justice and Accountability (CIJA)." *Journal of Genocide Research* 20:3 (2018): 392-411.
- Reisman, W. Michael and Christina Skinner. Fraudulent Evidence Before Public International Tribunals: The Dirty Stories of International Law (Cambridge, UK: Cambridge University Press, 2014).
- Rescher, Nicholas, and Carey B. Joynt. "Evidence in History and in the Law." *The Journal of Philosophy* 56:13 (1959): 561–578.
- Thorne, Benjamin. "Remembering atrocities: legal archives and the discursive conditions of witnessing." *The International Journal of Human Rights* (2020).
- Weizmann, Eyal. Forensic Architecture: Violence at the Threshold of Detectability (MIT Press, 2019).
- Weizman, Eyal and Franke, Anselm (eds.), FORENSIS: The Architecture of Public Truth (Sternberg Press, 2014).
- Weizmann, Eyal and Thomas Keenan. *Mengele's Skull: The Advent of a Forensic Aesthetics* (Sternberg Press, 2012).
- Wiley, William H. "International(ised) Criminal Justice at a Crossroads: The Role of Civil Society in the Investigation of Core International Crimes and the 'CIJA Model'," in Morten Bergsmo and Carsten Stahn (editors), *Quality Control in FactFinding*, Second Edition (Brussels: Torkel Opsahl Academic EPublisher, 2020), 547-587.
- Wilson, Richard Ashby. *Writing History in International Criminal Trials* (Cambridge: Cambridge University Press. 2011).
- Wilson, Richard Ashby. "Judging History: The Historical Record of the International Criminal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia." *Human Rights Quarterly* 27:3 (August 2005): 908-942.

#### 9. Conflict Records, Memory, and Conflicted Societies

- Adams, Jefferson. "Probing the East German State Security Archives," *International Journal of Intelligence and CounterIntelligence* 13:1 (2000): 21-34.
- Agamben, Giorgio. *Remnants of Auschwitz: The Witness and the Archive* Trans. Daniel Heller-Roazen (New York: Zone Books, 1999).
- Bousquet, Antoine. "Time Zero: Hiroshima, September 11 and Apocalyptic Revelations in Historical Consciousness." *Millennium* 34, no. 3 (2006): 739-764.
- Bsheer, Rosie. *Archive Wars: The Politics of History in Saudi Arabia* (Stanford: Stanford University Press, 2020).
- Caswell, Michelle. *Archiving the Unspeakable: Silence, Memory, and the Photographic Record in Cambodia* (Madiscon, WI: University of Wisconsin Press, 2014).
- Caswell, Michelle. "Rethinking Inalienability: Trusting Nongovernmental Archives in Transitional Societies." *The American Archivist* 76:1 (2013): 113–134.
- Caswell, Michelle. "Khmer Rouge archives: accountability, truth, and memory in Cambodia." *Archival Science* 10 (2010): 25–44.
- Cox, Richard. "Archives, War, and Memory: Building a Framework." *Library & Archival Security* 25:1 (2012): 21-57.
- Feldman, Allen. *Archives of the Insensible: Of War, Photopolitics, and Dead Memory* (Chicago: University of Chicago Press, 2015).
- Foote, Kenneth E. "To Remember and Forget: Archives, Memory, and Culture." *The American Archivist* 53:3 (1990): 378–392.

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Geary, Patrick J. *Phantoms of Remembrance: Memory and Oblivion at the End of the First Millennium* (Princeton: Princeton University Press, 1994).
- Harris, Verne. "Redefining Archives in South Africa: Public Archives and Society in Transition, 1990–1996." *Archivaria* 42 (Fall 1996): 6-27.
- Haslam, Jonathan. "Collecting and Assembling Pieces of the Jigsaw: Coping with Cold War Archives." *Cold War History* 4:3 (2004): 140-152.
- Haugbolle, Sune. "Public and Private Memory of the Lebanese Civil War." *Comparative Studies of South Asia Africa and the Middle East* 25:1 (2005): 191-203.
- Jockusch, Laura. *Collect and Record!: Jewish Holocaust Documentation in Early Postwar Europe* (Oxford and New York: Oxford University Press, 2012).
- Khalili, Laleh. "Heroic and Tragic Pasts: Mnemonic Narratives in the Palestinian Refugee Camps 1." *Critical Sociology* 33:4 (July 2007): 731–759.
- Lemarchand, René. "The Politics of Memory in Post-Genocide Rwanda," Chapter in P. Clark and Z. Kaufman (eds.), *After Genocide: Transitional Justice, Post-Conflict Reconstruction and Reconciliation in Rwanda and Beyond* (London: Hurst and Co. Publishers, 2008.
- Lewis, A. "Reading and Writing the Stasi File: on the Uses and Abuses of The File as (Auto)Biography." *German Life and Letters* 56 (2003): 377-397.
- Lovell, W.G. "The Archive That Never War: State Terror and Historical Memory in Guatemala." *Geographical Review* 103:2 (2013): 199-209.
- Lowry, Keith, Ed. Displaced Archives (New York and London: Routledge, 2017).
- Quintana, Antonio Gonzalez. Archives of the Security Services of Former Repressive Regimes (UNESCO, 1997).
- Miller, John. "Settling accounts with a secret police: The German law on the Stasi records." *Europe-Asia Studies* 50:2 (1998): 305-330.
- Redwood, Henry Alexander. "Archiving (In)Justice: Building Archives and Imagining Community." *Millennium* (Oct. 2020).
- Rubli, Sandra and Briony Jones. Archives for a Peaceful Future (Bonn: Swisspeace, 2013).
- Taylor, F. Exorcising Hitler: the Occupation and Denazification of Germany (London: Bloomsbury, 2012).
- Richards, Thomas. *The Imperial Archive: Knowledge and the Fantasy of Empire* (London and New York: Verso Books, 1993).
- Stevens, Tim. "South Korea renews information campaign on reunification." *Sovereign Data* 2:1 (January 2016): 1-4.
- Weld, Kirsten. "Fighting Guatemala's Archive Wars: Documentation, Mobilization, Justice." Chapter in Carlos Aguirre and Javier Villa-Flores, eds., From the Ashes of History: Loss and Recovery in Archives and Libraries in Modern Latin America (Raleigh: Editorial A Contracorriente, 2015), pp. 227-264.
- Weld, Kirsten. *Paper Cadavers: The Archives of Dictatorship in Guatemala* (Durham, NC: Duke University Press, 2014).
- Wolle, Stefan and Pamela Selwyn. "The Poisoned Society: The Stasi File Syndrome in the Former GDR." *History Workshop* 33 (1992): 138-44.
- NA, Guidance Note: The Role of Archives in Transitional Justice. Proceedings of the workshop "Atrocity's Archives: The Role of Archives in Transitional Justice," 27-28 March 2018, University of Oxford. URL: <a href="https://www.law.ox.ac.uk/role-archives-transitional-justice/guidance-note-role">https://www.law.ox.ac.uk/role-archives-transitional-justice/guidance-note-role</a>

#### 10. Conflict Records, Technology, and the Politics of Information

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Ansorge, Josef Teboho. *Identify and Sort: How Digital Power Changes World Politics* (London: C. Hurst & Co. Publishers, 2016).
- Asher-Schapiro, Avi and Ban Barkawi, "Lost memories': War crimes evidence threatened by AI moderation," *Reuters* (19 June 2020). URL: <a href="https://news.trust.org/item/20200619151037-6elog/">https://news.trust.org/item/20200619151037-6elog/</a>
- Calkins, Laura M. "Patrolling the Ether: US–UK Open Source Intelligence Cooperation and the BBC's Emergence as an Intelligence Agency, 1939–1948." *Intelligence and National Security* 26:1 (2011): 1-22.
- Chamelot, F., Hiribarren, V., & Rodet, M. "Archives, the Digital Turn, and Governance in Africa." *History in Africa* 47 (2020): 101-118.
- Dafoe, Allan, and Jason Lyall. "From Cell Phones to Conflict? Reflections on the Emerging ICT-Political Conflict Research Agenda." *Journal of Peace Research* 52:3(2015): 401–413.
- Douglass, Rex W., and Kristen A. Harkness. "Measuring the Landscape of Civil War: Evaluating Geographic Coding Decisions with Historic Data from the Mau Mau Rebellion." Journal of Peace Research 55:2 (Mar. 2018): 190–205.
- Drezner, Dan. "Why WikiLeaks Is Bad for Scholars," Chronicle of Higher Education (5
  December 2010). URL: <a href="https://www.chronicle.com/article/why-wikileaks-is-bad-for-scholars/">https://www.chronicle.com/article/why-wikileaks-is-bad-for-scholars/</a>
  - Western, Jon. "American Foreign Policy Research and Wikileaks." *Duck of Minerva* (30 November 2010). URL: <a href="https://duckofminerva.com/2010/11/american-foreign-policy-research-and\_30.html">https://duckofminerva.com/2010/11/american-foreign-policy-research-and\_30.html</a>
  - o Hood, Christopher. "From FOI World to WikiLeaks World: A New Chapter in the Transparency Story?" *Governance* 24:4 (2011): 635-638.
  - Hunt, Edward. "The WikiLeaks Cables: How the United States Exploits the World, in Detail, from an Internal Perspective, 2001–2010." *Diplomacy & Statecraft* 30:1 (2019): 70-98.
- Ellis, Stephen. "Tuning in to Pavement Radio," African Affairs 88:352 (1989): 321–330. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1093/oxfordjournals.afraf.a098185
- Hiribarren, Vincent. "Why Researchers Should Publish Archive Inventories Online: The Case of the Archives of French Equatorial Africa." *History in Africa* 43 (2016): 375-378.
- Innes, Michael A. "Denial-of-Resource Operations and NPFL Radio Dominance in the Liberian Civil War." *Civil Wars* 7:3 (Autumn 2005): 94-115.
- Käihkö, Ilmari. "Conflict Chatnography: Instant Messaging Apps, Social Media and Conflict Ethnography in Ukraine." *Ethnography* 21:1 (2020): 71–91.
- Käihkö Ilmari. "Conflict Ethnography Goes Online: Chatnography of the Ukrainian Volunteer Battalions" Chapter in: Mac Ginty R., Brett R., Vogel B. (eds), *The Companion to Peace and Conflict Fieldwork* (London: Palgrave Macmillan, 2021), pp. 207-221.
- Keese, A., & Owabira, B. "Rescuing, Interpreting, and, Eventually, Digitizing Regional Postcolonial Archives: Endangered Archives and Research in Pointe-Noire, Republic of Congo." *History in Africa* 47 (2020):143-165.
- Lauricella, A., Cannon, J., Branting, S., & Hammer, E. "Semi-automated detection of looting in Afghanistan using multispectral imagery and principal component analysis." *Antiquity* 91:359 (2017): 1344-1355.
- Leetaru, Kalev. "The Scope of FBIS and BBC Open Source Media Coverage, 1979-2008."
  Studies in Intelligence 54:1 (2010): 17-37.
- MacKinnon, Amy. "Bellingcat Can Say What U.S. Intelligence Can't." Foreign Policy (17 December 2020). URL: <a href="https://foreignpolicy.com/2020/12/17/bellingcat-can-say-what-u-s-intelligence-cant/">https://foreignpolicy.com/2020/12/17/bellingcat-can-say-what-u-s-intelligence-cant/</a>

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

- Bellingcat. "FSB Team of Chemical Weapons Experts Implicated in Alexey Navalny Novichock Poisoning." (14 December 2020). URL: <a href="https://www.bellingcat.com/news/uk-and-europe/2020/12/14/fsb-team-of-chemical-weapon-experts-implicated-in-alexey-navalny-novichok-poisoning/">https://www.bellingcat.com/news/uk-and-europe/2020/12/14/fsb-team-of-chemical-weapon-experts-implicated-in-alexey-navalny-novichok-poisoning/</a>
- o Bellingcat. "Hunting the Hunters: How We Identified Navalny's FSB Stalkers." (14 December 2020). URL: <a href="https://www.bellingcat.com/resources/2020/12/14/navalny-fsb-methodology">https://www.bellingcat.com/resources/2020/12/14/navalny-fsb-methodology</a>.
- o Bellingcat. "Hunting the Hunters: Timeline." (14 December 2020). URL: <a href="https://bellingcat-embeds.ams3.digitaloceanspaces.com/AN/timeline.html">https://bellingcat-embeds.ams3.digitaloceanspaces.com/AN/timeline.html</a>.
- Meier, Patrick. "Crisis Mapping in Action: How Open Source Software and Global Volunteer Networks Are Changing the World, One Map at a Time." *Journal of Map & Geography Libraries* 8:2 (2012): 89-100.
- Mercado, Stephen. "FBIS Against the Axis, 1941–1945: Open-Source Intelligence From the Airwaves." *Studies in Intelligence* 45:5 (Fall-Winter 2001): 33-43.
- Morris, Rosalind C. "Surviving Pleasure at the Periphery: Chiang Mai and the Photographies of Political Trauma in Thailand, 1976–1992." Public Culture 10:2 (1 May 1998): 341–370.
- Nyblade, B., O'Mahony, A., and Sinpeng, A. "Social Media Data and the Dynamics of Thai Protests." *Asian Journal of Social Science* 43:5 (2015): 545-566.
- Omand, Sir David, Jamie Bartlett & Carl Miller. "Introducing Social Media Intelligence (SOCMINT)." *Intelligence and National Security* 27:6 (2012): 801-823.
- Ó. Tuathail, Gearóid and Derek McCormack, "Global Conflicts On-line: Technoliteracy and Developing an Internet-Based Conflict Archive," *Journal of Geography* 97:1 (1998): 1-11.
- Parcak, S., Gathings, D., Childs, C., Mumford, G., & Cline, E. "Satellite evidence of archaeological site looting in Egypt: 2002–2013." *Antiquity* 90:349 (2016): 188-205.
- Peet, Lisa. "British Library Declines Taliban Archive, New Hosts Step Up." *Library Journal* (22 September 2015). URL: <a href="https://www.libraryjournal.com/?detailStory=british-librarydeclines-taliban-archive-new-hosts-step-up">https://www.libraryjournal.com/?detailStory=british-librarydeclines-taliban-archive-new-hosts-step-up</a>.
- Rayne, L., Sheldrick, N., & Nikolaus, J. "Endangered archaeology in Libya: Recording damage and destruction." *Libyan Studies* 48 (2017): 23-49.
- Read, Róisín, Bertrand Taithe & Roger Mac Ginty. "Data hubris? Humanitarian information systems and the mirage of technology." *Third World Quarterly* 37:8 (2016): 1314-1331.
- Shapiro, Jacob N. and Nils B. Weidmann. "Is the Phone Mightier Than the Sword? Cellphones and Insurgent Violence in Iraq." *International Organization* 69 (2015): 247-274.
- Schneider, J., & Weinberg, P. "No Way Back Reflections on the Future of the African Photographic Archive." *History in Africa* 47 (2020): 167-194.
- Stevens, Tim. "Tainted Data and User Entitlement to Exploit." *Sovereign Data* 2:6 (June 2016): 1-4.
- Stockreiter, E. "Preserving and Digitizing Djenné's Manuscript Collections: The Politics of Space and Agency in Central Mali." *History in Africa* 47 (2020): 119-142.
- Titeca, Kristof. *Rebel Lives: Photographs From Inside the Lord's Resistance Army*. Veurne: Hannibal Publishing, 2020.
  - Titeca, Kristof. "How Joseph Kony's notorious Lord's Resistance Army Uses
     Photographs as Weapons." Monkey Cage Blog. Washington Post (9 December 2019).
     URL: <a href="https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/2019/12/09/heres-how-joseph-konys-notorious-lords-resistance-army-uses-photographs-weapons/">https://www.washingtonpost.com/politics/2019/12/09/heres-how-joseph-konys-notorious-lords-resistance-army-uses-photographs-weapons/</a>.
  - Titeca, Kristof. "Photographs reveal the personal lives of the Lord's Resistance Army." *The Conversation* (12 December 2019). URL: https://theconversation.com/photographs-reveal-the-personal-lives-of-the-lords-

### General Bibliography

Dr. Michael A. Innes Updated 04 February 2021

#### resistance-army-127843.

- Daher, Nadine. "How a Notorious Ugandan Rebel Group Used Everyday Snapshots as Propaganda." Smithsonian Magazine (29 January 2020). URL: <a href="https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smart-news/notorious-ugandan-rebel-group-used-snapshots-propaganda-180974080/">https://www.smithsonianmag.com/smart-news/notorious-ugandan-rebel-group-used-snapshots-propaganda-180974080/</a>.
- NA. "Two exhibitions explore dark moments in Uganda's past." *The Economist* (29 February 2020). URL: <a href="https://www.economist.com/books-and-arts/2020/02/29/two-exhibitions-explore-dark-moments-in-ugandas-past">https://www.economist.com/books-and-arts/2020/02/29/two-exhibitions-explore-dark-moments-in-ugandas-past</a>.
- Veal, C. "Nostalgia and nationalism: Facebook 'archives' and the constitution of Thai photographic histories." *Journal of Southeast Asian Studies* 51:3 (2020): 372-396.
- Yeo, Geoffrey. *Records, Information and Data Exploring the role of record keeping in an information culture* (New York and London: Routledge, 2018).